
Common Council

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appletonwi.gov

Council Chambers7:00 PMWednesday, January 15, 2025

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INVOCATION

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

D. ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONS

E. ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

F. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

24-1650 Common Council Meeting Minutes of December 18, 2024

 

CC Minutes 12-18-24.pdfAttachments:

G. BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYOR

25-0010 Confirmation of Appointment Amendment for CDBG Advisory Committee

 

Memo CDBG Appt.pdfAttachments:

H. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS

J. SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

K. ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAY

L. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 1/14/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25350
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7b856ab2-c765-4616-b6d9-c73ab5c35d8b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25360
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a127a6dc-e0b3-46e9-bf71-b9d1be102fd6.pdf


January 15, 2025Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

24-1613 Award 2025 Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Ongoing Field 

Screening Services Contract to Westwood Infrastructure, Inc. in an amount 

not to exceed $35,000

MSC Award Memo 2025 IDDE Field Screening Services 01-06-2024.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/6/25 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1614 Award M-25 2025 Materials Testing & Contaminated Soils Contract to 

Westwood Infrastructure, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $100,000

MSC M-25 Contract Award Memo 01-06-2025.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/6/25 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1615 Approve Long Term Temporary Occupancy Permit to Integrity 

Environmental Services for dumpster in parking lane of Superior St north of 

College Ave, from 2/6/2025 through 11/30/2025.

MSC LTT Occupancy Permit_Integrity Enviro_Superior St Dumpster_01-06-2025.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/6/25 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

2. MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

24-0420 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License application for 

Delaires LLC d/b/a Delaire's, David Boulanger, Agent, located at 823 W. 

College Ave, contingent upon approval from the Health and Inspections 

departments.

Delaire's.Alcohol.Class B_Beer_Reserve_Liquor.4.10.24.REDACTED.pdf

Delaire's Attachment.pdf

Documents distributed by Alder Van Zeeland 10.23.24.pdf

APD Delaire's letter to S&L 11.27.24.docx

OEO to Appleton City Clerk re Holding Licensing Hearing - Delaire's LLC.pdf

2025 Delaire's Business Plan.pdf

Delaire's 2025 Alcohol License Questionnaire (Updated) - signed.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

10/9/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

10/16/24 Common Council referred to the Safety and Licensing 

Committee

10/23/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

held

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 1/14/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25313
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5acc3ede-ebbe-462e-92df-86e05c78f7ad.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25314
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=207e7728-24fa-4c4c-904c-d3c1a40f8da7.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25315
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b96ed8c7-0774-480d-a77a-84df3c6cdafb.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24121
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=573aade9-ab87-4fea-9b8c-135b6b7f7f18.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=906a7738-d3f7-475c-810f-5d6cb437c299.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=780b90c5-b9d3-401a-9efe-c475e4260c40.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=42a97bff-78e1-4f20-9e0c-e691687e47c9.docx
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b345254e-5ed8-4848-b7fd-7fb4800b92c7.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=470ec4fb-394d-4908-a508-640f0b82d0c6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=58cdd3a8-a9b4-47ad-a470-7417a1d04de3.pdf


January 15, 2025Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

12/11/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

held

1/8/25 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

David Boulanger was present and addressed the committee. 

Emil Ovbiagele, OVB Law & Consulting, 826 N Plankinton Ave, Milwaukee, 

WI, was present and addressed the committee.

24-1611 Secondhand Article Dealer License renewal application for T&S Sports 

d/b/a Play It Again Sports, Michael Milloy, Agent, located at 611 W 

Northland Ave, contingent upon approval from the Health department. 

Play It Again Sports.Secondhand Article Renewal.12.10.24.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/8/25 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

3. MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION

4. MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE

5. MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

24-1623 Request to approve Contract Amendment #1 with Restoration Systems Inc. 

for Green Ramp Barrier Panel Emergency Repairs Phase 1, in an 

increase of $17,225, for a new not-to-exceed contract total of $64,455.

Finance Memo Green Ramp Phase 1 Repairs Contract Amend 1_01-06-2025.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/6/25 Finance Committee recommended for approval

24-1624 Request to award the 2025 Interior Finishes and Furniture Project - 

Community Development to Chet Wesenberg Architect, LLC. for a 

sole-source contract not-to-exceed $67,400.

2025 Community Development AE Services.pdf

Sole Source Community Dev.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

1/6/25 Finance Committee recommended for approval

6. MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

24-1607 Request to approve City Program Funding for 2025 Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding as specified in the attached 

document

CDBG City Allocations Prelim Rec Memo to CDC 1-8-25.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/8/25 Community Development 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 1/14/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25311
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3cb934e9-7948-409d-8562-bc38efba2c7a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25323
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c779fb77-f89a-496f-b555-56044df5ee8b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25324
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=98516e59-74b5-4565-ac16-832420b2111c.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=63b71864-e04f-440c-96af-8dea4474672e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25307
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3f6f5ada-58bf-45c8-8fbd-38047f9b4a75.pdf


January 15, 2025Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

7. MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE

24-1635 Approve Contract Amendment #1 to Applied Technologies Inc. as a part of 

the AWWTP Column and Plank Storage Upgrades for additional design 

and construction management services in the amount of $4,900 increasing 

the contract amount from $25,500 to $30,400.

 

250103_ATI_SSB_WallPlankModif Contract Amendment #1.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/7/25 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

8. MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE

9. MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION

10. MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH

M. CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMS

N. ITEMS HELD

O. ORDINANCES

P. LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION

Q. RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION

R. OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESS

S. CLOSED SESSION

25-0001 The Common Council may go into closed session according to State 

Statute §19.85(1)(e) (deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public 

properties, investing of public funds or conducting other specific public 

business when competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed 

session) for the purpose of deliberating or negotiating items related to the 

disposition of land in the Downtown District.  Upon conclusion of the closed 

session, the Common Council will then reconvene into open session.

 

T. ADJOURN

Page 4 City of Appleton Printed on 1/14/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25335
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b84fba25-26dd-428b-9d3e-a40088f23c52.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25351


January 15, 2025Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and 

if feasible.  

Remote meeting attendance may be permitted pursuant to Section 2-29 of the Appleton 

Municipal Code and Rules of Council.

Page 5 City of Appleton Printed on 1/14/2025



100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Common Council

7:00 PM Council ChambersWednesday, December 18, 2024

CALL TO ORDERA.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Woodford at 7:00 p.m.

INVOCATIONB.

The Invocation was offered by Alderperson Firkus.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAGC.

ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONSD.

Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Mayor Jake Woodford

Present: 13 - 

Alderperson Patti Heffernan, Alderperson Vaya Jones and Alderperson Chad 

Doran

Excused: 3 - 

ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADSE.

All Departments were represented.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTESF.

24-1600 Common Council Meeting Minutes of December 4, 2024

CC Minutes 12-4-24.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Fenton moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the Minutes 

be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim and Alderperson Christopher Croatt

12 - 

Excused: Alderperson Patti Heffernan, Alderperson Vaya Jones and Alderperson 

Chad Doran

3 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25300
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=527c9bba-83eb-4df8-9768-0dba97577790.pdf


December 18, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYORG.

24-1521 Parade Committee Awards Presentation

 

Corey Otis presented the 2024 Christmas Parade awards.

24-1599 Confirmation of Appointment

Dec 18 2024 Council Appointment Memo.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Hayden, that the 

appointment be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim and Alderperson Christopher Croatt

12 - 

Excused: Alderperson Patti Heffernan, Alderperson Vaya Jones and Alderperson 

Chad Doran

3 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATIONH.

There were no members of the public present to speak during public participation.

PUBLIC HEARINGSI.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONSJ.

ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAYK.

24-1598 Approve Water Rate Study Consultant.

 

Water Rate Study award consultant memo Dec 2024.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Firkus moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the Water 

Rate Study Consultant of Trilogy be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim and Alderperson Christopher Croatt

12 - 

Excused: Alderperson Patti Heffernan, Alderperson Vaya Jones and Alderperson 

Chad Doran

3 - 

Page 2City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25221
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25299
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=33af57a4-f3bf-4910-ae8c-4641b73956ca.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25298
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=63689610-8bd7-4f0c-86b7-1c6b7ca247dd.pdf


December 18, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

24-1546 Approval to hire CP2 Consulting for the City of Appleton Strategic Guide 

Facilitation Services. 

 

Strategic Planning RFP Memo.pdf

CP2 Strategic Plan Proposal.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Croatt moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the hiring of 

the consultant be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff and 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt

11 - 

Nay: Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim1 - 

Excused: Alderperson Patti Heffernan, Alderperson Vaya Jones and Alderperson 

Chad Doran

3 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

24-1569 Request to approve the Relocation Order for the Lawe Street 

reconstruction project from College Avenue to Spring Street.

0515 - Lawe - Relocation Order (12-02-2024).pdf.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Croatt, that the 

Relocation order be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim and Alderperson Christopher Croatt

12 - 

Excused: Alderperson Patti Heffernan, Alderperson Vaya Jones and Alderperson 

Chad Doran

3 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

COMMITTEE REPORTSL.

Balance of the action items on the agenda.

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, Alderperson Meltzer seconded, to approve the 

balance of the agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote:

Page 3City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25246
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3722469e-8c61-4325-b4f0-46957bb33f83.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ccd225f6-0fbf-457d-9004-c19d64377713.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25269
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d634e490-aeda-44be-a951-af15a854750f.pdf


December 18, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim and Alderperson Christopher Croatt

12 - 

Excused: Alderperson Patti Heffernan, Alderperson Vaya Jones and Alderperson 

Chad Doran

3 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE1.

24-1562 Approve 2025 Morrison Street Asphalt Reconstruction Traffic Calming 

Design Changes.

Morrison St Design Changes 12-09-2024 .pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1563 Award 2025 Contract for Operation, Maintenance, and Monitoring at the 

Closed City of Appleton Landfill to SCS Engineers, in an amount not to 

exceed $76,361.

Award 2025 SCS Mackville 12-09-2024 .pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1564 2025 Sole Source Purchase Request - Various Traffic Equipment & 

Technologies

Sole Source Purchase Request - Traffic Equipment 2025.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE2.

24-1495 Operator License for Crystal Williams.

Crystal Williams Application.pdf

Crystal Williams Clerk's Letter.pdf

Crystal Williams denial letter.pdf

Crystal Williams supplemental denial.pdf

Crystal Williams Operator License Memo.pdf

Letter provided by Crystal Williams 12.11.24.pdf

Attachments:

The recommendation to deny the license was approved.

Page 4City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25262
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8e5ab1b3-eb44-424b-af2d-ba3d2eaf0180.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25263
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8407b0ce-e382-468c-b996-2867139cdbbe.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25264
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d6a6ef52-0573-4d3c-80e8-10003787810b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25195
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2bf45400-5361-4e32-8bd3-3bf8f44321d9.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=570a7846-301f-4c78-97fb-4fd97dc3084b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=93dfac41-ec9d-4fe4-931b-1377658a0a12.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=143b4165-b2c3-4a4f-b9f4-70d5f3f04afc.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=45c8c081-e1e1-461c-ba23-4666288749f6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b0879790-7f4c-47e9-a52e-7bcb9e2af4cd.pdf


December 18, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

24-1500 2025 Secondhand Jewelry, Secondhand Article, and Pawnbroker 

License renewal applications, contingent upon approval from all 

departments. 

 

2025 SECONDHAND.PAWN RENEWALS.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1501 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License application for Sushi Lover 

in Appleton LLC d/b/a Sushi Lover, Zhen Zhen Sun, Agent, located at 527 

W. College Ave, contingent upon approval from the Community 

Development, Health, and Inspections departments. 

 

Sushi Lover in Appleton LLC.Alcohol.Class B 

Beer_Liquor.11.11.24.REDACTED.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1502 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License application for Eldorado 

Moon LLC d/b/a Missfits Tavern, Hollyann Strunc, Agent, located at 317 

N. Appleton St, contingent upon approval from the Community 

Development, Health and Inspections departments. 

 

Missfits Tavern.Eldorado Moon LLC.Alcohol.Class B 

Beer_Liquor.11.11.24.REDACTED.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1519 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License application for Taste of 

Thai Appleton LLC d/b/a Mad Elephant, Chisa Jitmaiwong, Agent, 

located at 1222 S. Oneida St, contingent upon approval from the 

Community Development, Health, and Inspections departments. 

 

Mad Elephant.Tast of Thai Appleton LLC. Alcohol. Class B 

Beer_Liquor.11.25.24.REDACTED.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1506 Police Department Requests Approval of Sole Source Purchase for 

Load Bearing Vests

2025 Sole Source Memo.pdf

Armor Express - PD.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 5City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25200
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=677cada2-437e-4043-b72c-8f6503a91af4.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25201
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=15441757-4b77-46e3-a6e1-696280997e67.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25202
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=dae6dbf3-c66a-473b-a907-0a45e9fc4aae.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25219
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=92dfa2a9-9ff2-4763-92cc-c0df1979c02f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25206
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e0d20105-2812-43fc-bf93-b32dd8adf65c.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=edf8a9e3-11c3-4880-a742-844be5859669.pdf


December 18, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

24-1566 Fire Department Request to Apply - Assistance to Firefighter Grant

 

Request_to_Apply_AFG_SCBA.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1567 Fire Department Request to Purchase Cardiac Monitors

 

12-04-24_Request_to_Purchase_Cardiac_Monitors.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION3.

MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE4.

MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE5.

24-1570 Request to approve contract extension for BMC ARPA Grant 

Administration Contract.

MemoContractExtension_BMCARPA.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1571 Request to approve Development Agreement for Lumbini Estates 

(Saket, LLC).

0288 - Lumbini - Development Agreement - Draft 12-03-2024.pdf.pdf

LumbiniEstate_DAMemo_12052024.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1572 Request to approve write off of $49,609.68 of accounts receivable 

invoices and $23,407.02 of personal property taxes (outstanding over 

one year).

AR Write Off List 2024.pdf

PP Write off List 2024.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE6.

MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE7.

Page 6City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25266
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d60e214a-a59c-41b5-ba4d-abbaf14aa6cb.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25267
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d182f3c9-506a-4db5-8531-960465ffea91.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25270
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cac63f38-e83f-41ff-ac2c-bd6b8f02fad8.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25271
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=92ba5656-e721-47b4-a5a4-51186ca5d098.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3cc9d740-41b3-4b7d-b9fd-c93880816078.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25272
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8c60b097-d9f7-4aaa-b4fb-a3a9dc9cff61.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=477b24c4-8335-4594-8663-66cf101fc6b4.pdf


December 18, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

24-1531 Award Organic Recycling Contractor Services to Hsu Growing Supply for 

an extended one (1) year term ending December 31, 2025.

 

241202_UCMHSU_contract extension 2025.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1532 Award 2025A Stormwater Management Plan review contract to Brown 

and Caldwell in an amount not to exceed $80,000.

 

2025A BC Plan Review Award Util Memo 12-10-2024.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1533 Award 2025B Stormwater Management Plan review contract to raSmith 

in an amount not to exceed $30,000.

 

2025B raSmith Plan Review Award Util Memo 12-10-2024_r1.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1534 Award N-24 Spot Repairs, Protruding Taps & Mineral Deposit Removal 

to New Restoration and Recovery Services, LLC dba Aqualis, in an 

amount not to exceed $129,512.50

 

N-24 Contract Award Form w Bid Tabs.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1535 Amend K-24 Native Vegetation Contract (K-24) with Robert E. Lee & 

Associates, Inc. dba NES Ecological Services by an increase of 

$15,000, from $192,345.12 to a new amount not to exceed $207,345.12.

 

K-24 NES Contract Amend Util Memo 12-10-2024.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1536 Approve Contract Amendment #2 to McMahon as part of the Wastewater 

Treatment Plant Grit Removal, Blended Sludge Piping and Heat 

Exchanger Replacement Project for additional design and construction 

management services in the amount of $18,900.

 

241120_Utilities Memo_HEX Project Contract Amendment2.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 7City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25231
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b45f193a-f565-470d-86aa-f80ebd316454.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25232
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b0ea85cd-a261-4cdb-a71e-5fb2083212db.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25233
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fe21b2d2-e47b-45ad-ad54-6b4526309f21.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25234
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bf209a88-ed21-4c5d-9ba7-428c0949b6ef.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25235
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9d2a3d5c-6c4e-40b5-a576-d0c5774e2587.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25236
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=70edd702-07a3-4b66-a8f6-12f5442a7f7d.pdf


December 18, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

24-1580 Approval of an Engineering Services Contract for the North and 

Ridgeway Tower Coating Projects to Dixon Engineering, Inc. in the 

amount of $129,390 plus a 7.5% contingency of $9,704 for a total cost of 

$139,094.

 

2025_North-Ridgeway Tower Coating Services Contact Award 

Memo.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE
8.

24-1545 Approval to Over Hire for the Deputy Director Human Resources 

Position. 

 

Over Hire HR Deputy Director.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION9.

24-1553 Approve the Intermunicipal Agreement with Outagamie County for 

Specialized Transportation Services for 2025 Contingent on Outagamie 

County Approval

2025 Outagamie County Contract.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1554 Approve the Intermunicipal Agreement with Winnebago County for 

Specialized Transportation Services for 2025 Contingent on Winnebago 

County Approval

2025 Winnebago County Contract.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1555 Approve the Intermunicipal Agreement with Calumet County for 

Specialized Transportation Services for 2025 Contingent on Calumet 

County Approval

2025 Calumet County Contract.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 8City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25280
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=85f716d4-f386-4867-af2a-69032c0e37c0.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25245
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8e97f55c-fbf3-4f50-bee9-4ea2865a9fc6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25253
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d3931be0-e605-4a20-8d5d-bc30f734763d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25254
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d4fab08c-031d-4b95-84b4-dfc2aed7fe43.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25255
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=43216b6a-5587-412b-92e8-ee3c4251abc3.pdf


December 18, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

24-1556 Approve the Intermunicipal Agreement with the City of Neenah for 

Northern Winnebago Dial-A-Ride Service for 2025 Contingent on City of 

Neenah Approval

2025 NWDAR Neenah Contract.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1557 Approve the Intermunicipal Agreement with the Village of Fox Crossing 

for the Northern Winnebago Dial-A-Ride Services for 2025 Contingent on 

the Village of Fox Crossing Approval

2025 NWDAR Fox Crossings Contract.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH10.

CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMSM.

ITEMS HELDN.

ORDINANCESO.

LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION
P.

RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION
Q.

OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESSR.

CLOSED SESSIONS.

Page 9City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25256
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=42e810cd-930b-4cce-ac17-ee09bbef8110.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25257
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8a5fe776-8671-4c32-bba5-5550584c1d13.pdf


December 18, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

24-1597 The Common Council may go into closed session according to State 

Statute §19.85(1)(e) (deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public 

properties, investing of public funds or conducting other specific public 

business when competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed 

session) for the purpose of deliberating or negotiating items related to 

the proposed Valley Transit Mixed Use Development.  Upon conclusion 

of the closed session, the Common Council will then reconvene into open 

session.

 

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the 

Common Council convene into Closed Session at 7:22 p.m. Roll Call. Motion 

carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim and Alderperson Christopher Croatt

12 - 

Excused: Alderperson Patti Heffernan, Alderperson Vaya Jones and Alderperson 

Chad Doran

3 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

ADJOURNT.

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Fenton, to reconvene into 

open session at 8:17 p.m.  Roll Call.  Motion carried 12/0 and at 8:17 the Council 

reconvened in open session.  No action was taken in closed session.

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Croatt, that the 

meeting be adjourned at 8:18 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim and Alderperson Christopher Croatt

12 - 

Excused: Alderperson Patti Heffernan, Alderperson Vaya Jones and Alderperson 

Chad Doran

3 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Page 10City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25297


 

 
 

Date: January 17, 2025 

To: Common Council  
From: Mayor Jacob A. Woodford  

Subject: Confirmation of Appointments for                               
CDBG ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 

Due to a recurring scheduling conflict with the expected meeting times, Alder Wolff has had to 
step down from his appointment to the CDBG Advisory Committee. Alder Jones has offered 
to fill the vacancy.    
 
Committee: CDBG Advisory Committee  
New Appointment: Alder Vaya Jones – Term Ends April 2025 



 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:   January 6, 2025 
To:   Municipal Services Committee 
From:  Laura Jungwirth, Director of Public Works 
   Peter Neuberger, City Engineer/Deputy Director of Public Works 
   Luke Vandenberg, Project Engineer 
Subject:  Award 2025 Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Ongoing Field 

Screening Services Contract to Westwood Infrastructure, Inc. in an 
amount not to exceed $35,000 

 

 
The Department of Public Works recommends award of the 2025 Illicit Discharge Detection and 
Elimination Ongoing Field Screening Services Contract to Westwood Infrastructure, Inc. 
(Westwood) in an amount not to exceed $35,000.  
 
Work under this contract includes the following: 

 Field screening of stormwater outfalls. 
 NR216 Reporting in accordance with WPDES General MS4 Stormwater Permit. 
 Review of the current (2020) Ongoing Field Screening Program to be consistent and in 

compliance with the 2025 MS4 Stormwater Permit, which is expected to be issued later 
in 2025. 

 Response and tracking of Illicit Discharges. 
 

In March 2024 DPW issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) to five consultants. Two proposals 
were received. The RFP and 2024 award memo stated: “with satisfactory performance by the 
consultant, Ongoing Illicit Discharge Field Screening services may be negotiated with the selected 
consultant on a yearly basis for up to four additional years (through 2028).”  
 
Based on the continued quality of work by Westwood throughout 2024, DPW recommends award 
of the 2025 contact to Westwood for the second year of approval. 

 



 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date:   January 6, 2025 
To:  Municipal Services Committee 
From:  Laura Jungwirth, Director of Public Works 
   Peter Neuberger, City Engineer/Deputy Director of Public Works 
   Luke Vandenberg, Project Engineer 
Subject:  Award M-25 2025 Materials Testing & Contaminated Soils Contract to 

Westwood Infrastructure, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $100,000 

 

The Department of Public Works recommends award of the M-25 2025 Materials Testing & 
Contaminated Soils Contract to Westwood Infrastructure, Inc., (Westwood) in an amount not to 
exceed $100,000.  
 
In January 2024, DPW issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) to twelve consulting firms. Two 
proposals were received, and the Common Council approved DPW’s recommendation to contract 
with Westwood for 2024 Materials Testing & Contaminated Soils consulting services. The 2024 
award memo and Request for Proposals stated: “With satisfactory performance by the selected 
consultant services may be negotiated with the selected consultant and approved by the Common 
Council on a yearly basis for an additional 4 years.”  Based on the consistently high quality of 
work during 2024, staff recommends awarding to Westwood the 2025 contract as the second year 
of the approval.  
 
Work under this contract includes the following primary tasks: 

 Material testing for concrete, asphalt, and soils 
 Contaminated material response, analysis, and permitting  
 Styrene testing for cast in place pipe (CIPP) 
 Environmental investigations 
 Geotechnical investigations  

 
Although the proposal included unit cost data, the actual work needed during the year is unknown 
at this time. Funding for this work is included in each individual budget (concrete, asphalt, 
sidewalk, sanitary, storm and water).  Expenditures will be for actual services performed and may 
be less than the awarded amount.  A contract amendment will be brought to committee at the 
appropriate time if additional funding is necessary.  

 



n/o

Peter Neuberger
Line



parking space is on Superior Street

Loading zone south of Johnston St Alley

Peter Neuberger
Line





lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil





lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil







































 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

 

 

TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee  

  Common Council  

 

FROM: Lt. Ben Goodin 

 

DATE: 11/26/2024 

 

RE: Police Department’s Investigation into Delaire’s Reported Gambling Machine 

Operation 

 
 

 

Committee Members:  

 

On 10/16/24 I received email correspondence from City of Appleton attorney Zak Buruin.  

Attorney Buruin informed me a new bar attempting to open at 823 W. College Ave. known as 

Delaire's initially had their alcohol license approved by the Safety and Licensing committee.  On 

the licensing application, Delaire's is reportedly going to be a coffee bar and a traditional bar 

serving alcoholic beverages.  However, Alderperson Van Zeeland received reports from her 

constituents that Delaire's actually planned on using the business as a gambling parlor.  The City 

Council sent the alcohol license application back to the Safety and Licensing committee to 

review based on this information.  Attorney Buruin informed me the owner of Delaire's, David 

Boulanger, previously tried opening a bar with gaming machines in Grafton, WI in 2022 but was 

denied by Grafton's planning commission. 

 

On 10/23/24 Alderperson Van Zeeland e-mailed me contact information for the main 

complainant about Delaire's, identified as Jaime Pappenfuss.  Jaime runs a salon directly next 

door to Delaire's.  On 10/24/24 I spoke with Jaime over the phone to get her statement.  Jaime 

stated someone gave a person from Delaire's a key to access her business (they have a joint rear 

hallway within the building) to look for some sort of electrical hook up.  Jaime was at her salon 

when this occurred.  Jaime spoke with the male who came over and asked if there was going to 

be a coffee bar in the establishment and the male said "yeah, well not really one with drinks but 

more of a gambling machine lounge."  Jaime informed me she did an internet search and 

discovered David's past encounter in Grafton.  Jaime then forwarded this information to 

Alderperson Van Zeeland. 

 

Jaime stated the above-mentioned comment about the business being a gambling machine lounge 

was captured on her salon cameras.  Jaime sent me the video clip in question which I saved to 

evidence.com.  The video shows Jaime asking an unidentified white male what was going in the 

business next door.  The male responded, "A bar but not really (unintelligible) gambling 

machines".  There was some background noise while the male was speaking, and I couldn't make 



out all of his words.  Jaime then laughed and asked, "like Big Daddy and all that?" and the male 

said "yeah".  After viewing the video and comparing the side view of the male's face with 

David's DOT photo it does not appear that David is the one on video.  The video was recorded 

on 10/15/24 at 2:33 pm according to the time stamp on the footage. 

 

After speaking with Jaime, I went by Delaire's and viewed the interior of the bar from the 

storefront window.  The business had a small bar area, several high back seats with tables, and a 

small couch seating area.  There were no gambling machines visible at that time. 

 

Later on 10/24/24 I spoke on the phone with Timm Gloudemans, who works for Buss Electric 

Inc.  Timm was the electrical inspector hired by Delaire's to complete the electrical permit for the 

business.  I asked Timm if there was anything unusual about his time in Delaire's or anything 

from an electrical wiring standpoint and he said no.  Timm advised the inspection was pretty 

standard and nothing suspicious occurred.  Timm did not know anything about gambling 

machines being installed at the business. 

 

I attempted to speak with the owner of Amberlulu Bubble Tea and Desserts (Uni Uni) which is 

the business on the other side of Delaire's.  I went by Uni Uni on 11/6/24 and spoke with the 

manager, who called and messaged the owner Fannie, but she did not respond.  I left the manager 

my business card and asked her to have Fannie call me.  I called Fannie and left her a voicemail 

and have yet to receive a call back.  Jaime indicated Fannie may have more information about 

the gambling machine allegations which is why I reached out to her. 

 

Jaime also gave me a phone number for the landlord of the property, identified as Jeff.  I called 

Jeff on 11/16/24 and left a voicemail asking him to call me back. 

 

On 11/16/24 I spoke with David over the phone to get his statement.  I told David I had received 

complaints that his new business was going to operate as a gambling parlor instead of a bar.  

David stated he had no intentions of running any sort of gambling operation and was opening the 

business as a bar just as he indicated on his alcohol license application.  I told David about the 

video Jaime sent me and he stated he had no idea who she spoke with that made that comment on 

the video.  David said he did not plan on having any sort of gambling machines at all.  He said in 

the future he may install some amusement devices that do not pay out any money but that's it. 

 

As of 11/26/24 I have not developed any other leads to investigate this complaint. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Ben Goodin 

Lieutenant 

Appleton Police 



 
 

 

826 N Plankinton Ave. Suite 600 Milwaukee, WI 53203 

414. 585. 0588 (office) ovblaw.com 414. 255. 3031 (fax) 

 
 
 
December 6, 2024         
 

Emil Ovbiagele      
             emil@ovblaw.com  

[via Email Only] 
City of Appleton 
Attn: Kami Lynch  
kami.lynch@appleton.org 
 

RE: REQUEST TO HOLD LICENSING HEARING 
Delaire’s LLC – 823 W College Ave. 

 
Dear Ms. Lynch, 
 
 Please be advised that my office has been retained by Delaire’s LLC, and its agent, David 
Boulanger, as it pertains to my client’s business license applications to operate at 823 W College 
Ave., Appleton, WI 54914.  
 
 My client is currently scheduled to come before the Safety and Licensing Committee on 
December 11, 2024. However, after careful consideration, my client is requesting that their 
appearance before the Safety and Licensing Committee be held until a later date. At this time, my 
client needs the additional time to meet with community members and those who have special 
interest in the business. The additional time will further allow my client the ability to provide the 
Committee with more information concerning their business operations.   
 
 Please feel free to direct any questions to me concerning my client’s matter. I appreciate your 
attention to this matter. 
 
 

 
 
 
Very Truly Yours, 
 
OVB Law & Consulting, S.C. 
          

/s/ 
  
 Emil Ovbiagele, JD, MBA 

    Attorney 
  

OEO/ab 
 
 

mailto:emil@ovblaw.com
mailto:kami.lynch@appleton.


1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DELAIRE’S LLC 
 

823 W. College Ave., Appleton, WI 54914 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2025 BUSINESS PLAN 
 
 
 



2 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
Delaire’s is a unique establishment that combines the offerings of a traditional bar, along with a fun 
group activity to bring in new customers; that being board games! Located in the heart of Appleton, 
our business aims to provide a welcoming environment where customers can enjoy a drink while 
playing their favorite games with friends.  Board games are a great way to get people off their 
phones and to interact with each other once again. 
 
BUSINESS DESCRIPTION:  
 
Delaire’s will offer a diverse menu of drinks, like other bars that you would typically find in the 
Appleton area, except ours includes board games as our focus for several reasons.  Market research 
has shown that when people are focused on an activity, they will sit longer, in turn consuming more 
drinks.  Board Games are a very inexpensive way to add a familiar attraction that no other bars have 
in the area. 
 
Board Games are great for all ages! Whether you are in your early 20s looking to play a fun game of 
Card Against Humanity, or perhaps you are older and a bit more nostalgic, and you would like to 
play a game of Monopoly.  Whatever you are looking for, Delaire’s is sure to have it.  It’s time to get 
off your phone and have a fun night out at Delaire’s. 
 
TARGET MARKET: 
 
Our target market includes a diverse range of individuals, including beer enthusiasts, professionals 
seeking a relaxed workspace, students looking for a study spot, and individuals seeking a casual yet 
sophisticated atmosphere to socialize with friends or colleagues.  Socialization is at the core of all 
board games, as they bring groups of people together for a common goal, that being having fun. 
 
COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE: 
 
This business model has already been proven in West Bend, Wisconsin.  The main competitive 
advantage of this establishment over other bars, is that Delaire’s offers a destination to play board 
games.  You can grab a beer at any other bar in town, and they will all be the same.  But where can 
you get a great craft beer to enjoy with friends over some fun games to keep the night exciting?  
Delaire’s is that answer. 
 
Additionally, we will prioritize customer service, aiming to create a welcoming and inclusive 
environment where patrons feel valued and comfortable.  If there are games that we do not have, 
and if our patrons want to play them, we will go out and buy it.  Our knowledgeable staff will be 
trained to provide personalized recommendations and cultivate a sense of community among 
customers. 
 
MARKETING STRATEGY: 
 
Delaire’s will utilize a multi-faceted marketing approach to attract customers and build brand 
awareness. This strategy will include: 
 



3 
 

1. Social media marketing: Engaging with customers through platforms such as Instagram, 
Facebook, and X/Twitter to showcase our offerings, promote special events, and interact 
with our online community. 

2. Local partnerships: Collaborating with nearby businesses, such as bookstores or art galleries, 
to cross-promote our establishment and attract a diverse clientele. 

3. Event hosting: Hosting regular events, such as live music performances, trivia nights, or 
cribbage matches, to create buzz and attract new customers. 

4. Loyalty programs: Implementing a loyalty program to reward repeat customers and 
encourage customer retention. 

 
FINANCIAL PLAN: 
 
Delaire’s anticipates initial startup costs for equipment, furnishings, and renovations.  We project 
steady growth in revenue over the first few years of operation, driven by increasing customer traffic 
and sales volume. 
 
Revenue streams will primarily come from the sale of non-alcoholic beverages, alcoholic drinks, and 
light food offerings.  We will carefully monitor expenses, including inventory, staffing, and 
marketing, to ensure profitability and sustainable growth. 
 
In the event additional financing is required, Delaire’s has the option to secure a line of credit of up 
to $200,000 from one of our current businesses, providing flexibility to manage cash flow and 
unexpected expenses. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Delaire’s offers a unique concept that combines the allure of a traditional bar, along with an 
entertainment aspect that no others in the area will have, being board games.  With a focus on 
quality, innovation, and exceptional customer service, we are confident that our business will 
become a beloved destination for board game enthusiasts and cocktail aficionados alike, operating 
from 10:00 AM to 10:00 PM to accommodate our diverse customer base. 
 
 









lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:   1/6/2025 
To:  Finance Committee 
From:  Pete Neuberger, Deputy Director of Public Works 
Subject: Approve Contract Amendment #1 with Restoration Systems Inc. for Green 

Ramp Barrier Panel Emergency Repairs Phase 1, in an increase of 
$17,225.00, for a new not-to-exceed contract total of $64,455.00. 

 

 
The Department of Public Works requests approval of contract amendment #1 with Restoration 
Systems Inc. (RS) for the Green Ramp Barrier Panel Emergency Repair Phase 1 in an amount 
of $17,225.00, for a new total contract amount not-to-exceed $64,455.   

The initial contract award was approved at the August 7, 2024, special Finance Committee and 
Common Council meetings. Pace of design by others of the permanent repairs for Green 
Ramp resulted in the need for RSI to extend temporary shoring rental beyond the 28 days 
initially included in the base contract. Based on actual completion date, 53 days of rental were 
required.  



 

Department of Parks & Recreation 
1819 East Witzke Blvd. 

Appleton, WI 54911  
p: 920-832-5905 
f: 920-993-3103 

www.appletonparkandrec.org 

 

 

 
TO:  Finance Committee 
 
FROM:  Dean Gazza 
 
DATE:  1-9-25 
 
RE:  Action:  Award the “2025 Interior Finishes and Furniture Project – Community 

Development” to Chet Wesenberg Architect, LLC. for a sole-source contract not-
to-exceed $67,400.   

 
Wesenberg Architects were chosen to provide architectural and engineering services for all phases 
of renovation since 2019 which included renovation of the Departments of Public Works and Health 
as well as the common spaces on 5th and 6th floors.  I have requested Wesenberg to provide a 
proposal for the design services for the Department of Community Development as it is customary 
to utilize the same architect throughout an entire project. 
 
We are recommending a sole-source contract to Chet Wesenberg Architect for $67,400.  The fees 
are very competitive therefore we are requesting your approval to maintain consistency and 
efficiencies as the design is an extension of previous designs as well is cost effective due to the 
previous knowledge gained by this team. 
 

Please contact me at 832-5572 or at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any questions. 

 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org




 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:   January 8, 2025 

To:   Community Development Committee 

From:  Olivia Galyon, Community Development Specialist 

Subject:  CDBG Preliminary Allocations – City and Core Projects 

 

Appleton’s Community Development Department has begun the process of allocating the 2025 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds. This is a preliminary process, and allocations 
may need updates following the official allocation from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD). An award estimate of $588,231 was determined for the 2025 program year. 
This amount is an estimate based on the previous 5-years’ allocations and is subject to change 
upon official allocation from HUD.  
 
According to City CDBG policy, the Community Development Committee makes a recommendation 
and Common Council approves allocations for all City CDBG programs. The proposed City program 
allocations are as follows: 
 

Housing Rehabilitation Loan Program: $200,000 

Community Resource Navigator: $88,231 

Neighborhood Grant Program: $40,000 

Appleton Housing Authority: $25,000 

Fair Housing: $25,000 

CDBG Administration: $65,000 

There are a few restrictions on CBDG funds that we must follow. First, up to 15% of funds can be 
used for public services. The Community Resource Navigator position is a public services project 
and is expected to use the full sum of available public service dollars. Second, up to 20% of funds 
can be used for administration, which includes Fair Housing. Fair Housing is also a required funding 
category and must be funded each year. The recommended administration and fair housing 
allocation of $90,000 amounts to 15.3% of funds, which is under the funding cap.    
 
The remaining balance of CDBG funds, $145,000, has been made available to external non-profit 
organizations through a competitive application process. The CDBG Advisory Board members are 
individually reviewing the submitted applications and will come together in late January to make 
preliminary external funding recommendations. These preliminary recommendations will be brought 
to Community Development Committee and Common Council for approval in February. Once the 
official allocation is received from HUD, final allocation amounts for City and external projects will 
be brought to Community Development Committee and Common Council for final approval. 



Department of Utilities  
Wastewater Treatment Facility 

2006 East Newberry Street. 
Appleton, WI 54911 

p:920-832-5945 
f: 920-832-5949 

www.appleton.org/government/utilities 

 

 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:  January 3, 2025  

To:  Chairperson Vered Meltzer 

CC:  Ryan Rice, Deputy Director of Utilities 
   Brian Kreski, Environmental Programs Coordinator 
   Kelli Rindt, Enterprise Accounting Fund Manager 

From:  Chris Stempa, Director of Utilities 

Subject: Utilities Committee Action: Approve Contract Amendment #1 to 
Applied Technologies Inc. as part of the AWWTP Column and Plank 
Storage Upgrades for additional design and construction 
management services in the amount of $4,900 increasing the 
contract amount from $25,500 to $30,400 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The Appleton Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) Sludge Storage Column and Plank Storage 

Upgrades engineering service contract was awarded to Applied Technologies Inc. (ATI) by 

Common Council on September 4, 2024 in the amount of $25,500 with a 10% contingency of 

$2,550 for a Project Total not to exceed $28,050. Owner directed changes in contract scope 

occurred over the course of the preliminary engineering phase as additional needs and 

opportunities were identified.  The change in scope listed below will add additional contract 

drawings and 32 hours of labor to the project.  

1. Repair of the nine precast roof support columns in the Biosolids Storage Building. 

2. Refinish the existing six removable columns that were not recoated during the Sludge 

Storage Building Addition Project.  

RECOMMENDATION 

The cost of additional engineering design and construction management services outlined in 

Contract Amendment #1 totals $4,900.  The funding outside of the originally approved 

contingency would come from remaining budget associated with the Sludge Storage Building 

Addition Project. This amendment, if approved, would result in the contract with ATI increasing 

from $25,500 to $30,400.     

If you have any questions regarding this project, please contact Chris Stempa at ph: 832-5945. 

 

http://www.appleton.org/government/utilities

	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_CC Minutes 12-18-24
	0002_1_Memo CDBG Appt
	0003_1_MSC Award Memo 2025 IDDE Field Screening Services 01-06-2024
	0004_1_MSC M-25 Contract Award Memo 01-06-2025
	0005_1_MSC LTT Occupancy Permit_Integrity Enviro_Superior St Dumpster_01-06-2025
	0006_1_Delaire's.Alcohol.Class B_Beer_Reserve_Liquor.4.10.24.REDACTED
	0006_2_Delaire's Attachment
	0006_3_Documents distributed by Alder Van Zeeland 10.23.24
	0006_4_APD Delaire's letter to SL 11.27.24
	0006_5_OEO to Appleton City Clerk re Holding Licensing Hearing - Delaire's LLC
	0006_6_2025 Delaire's Business Plan
	0006_7_Delaire's 2025 Alcohol License Questionnaire (Updated) - signed
	0007_1_Play It Again Sports.Secondhand Article Renewal.12.10.24.REDACTED
	0008_1_Finance Memo Green Ramp Phase 1 Repairs Contract Amend 1_01-06-2025
	0009_1_2025 Community Development AE Services
	0009_2_Sole Source Community Dev
	0010_1_CDBG City Allocations Prelim Rec Memo to CDC 1-8-25
	0011_1_250103_ATI_SSB_WallPlankModif Contract Amendment 1

